ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 21, 2012
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 304
“"An Act relating to the nenbership of the Al aska Fire Standards
Counci | ."

- MOVED HB 304 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 254

"An Act establishing the Al aska Native Language Preservation and
Advi sory Council and relating to the preservation, restoration,
and revitalization of Al aska Native | anguages."”

- MOVED CSHB 254( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 34

Urging the United States Congress to fund all the facilities and
vessel s necessary for the United States Coast Guard to fulfill
its Arctic mssions, including icebreakers and an Arctic Coast
Guard base.

- MOVED CSHIJR 34(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 304

SHORT TITLE: ALASKA FI RE STANDARDS COUNCI L
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHNSON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 21, 2012



01/ 30/ 12
01/ 30/ 12
02/ 21/ 12

H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
H) STA, FIN
H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

NN N

Bl LL: HB 254
SHORT TITLE: ALASKA NATI VE LANGUAGE COUNCI L
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) DI CK, MUNCZ

01/ 17/ 12 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 6/ 12

01/ 17/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 16/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 16/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 21/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HIR 34

SHORT TI TLE: COAST GUARD | CEBREAKERS & ARCTI C BASE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

02/ 03/ 12 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 03/ 12 (H) MV, STA

02/ 16/ 12 (H) M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 16/ 12 (H Moved CSHIR 34(M.V) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 17/ 12 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 4DP

02/ 17/ 12 (H DP: M LLER, LYNN, C SSNA, THOMPSON
02/ 21/ 12 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CRAI G JOHNSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HB 304.

ERI N SHI NE, Staff

Representative Craig Johnson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 304 on behal f
Represent ati ve Johnson, sponsor.

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief

North Star Vol unteer Fire Department (NSVFD); Past President
Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 21,

of

2012



North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 304.

TOM WESCOTT, President

Al aska  Prof essional Fire Fi ghters Associ ation ( AKPFFA) ,
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 304.

GORDON DESCUTNER, Executive Director

Al aska Fire Standards Counci

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
304.

ANNETTE KREI TZER, St aff

Representative Alan D ck

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
254 on behal f of Representative Dick, joint prine sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 34 as sponsor.

ADM RAL JEFFREY GARRETT (Retired)
Seattl e, Washi ngton
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 34.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8: 06: 00 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Johansen and Guenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 304- ALASKA FI RE STANDARDS COUNCI L

8: 06: 30 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 21, 2012



CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 304, "An Act relating to the nenbership of the Al aska
Fire Standards Council ."

8:06:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAIG JOHNSON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, introduced HB 304. He deferred to his staff to present
t he proposed | egqislation.

8:07:46 AM

ERIN SHINE, Staff, Representative Craig Johnson, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 304 on behalf of Representative
Johnson, sponsor. She noted that the sponsor statenment in the
commttee packet shows two changes [to the nenbership of the
Al aska Fire Standards Council (AFSC)], and she explained that
there is a third change that did not make it into the sponsor

statenment in time for the bill hearing. She said the proposed
| egislation would nake the followng three changes relating to
AFSC. designate an existing seat to a nenber of the Al aska

Professional Fire Fighters Association (AKPFFA); add a seat for
a nmenber of the Alaska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA); and
reclassify the existing seat for the Alaska State Firefighters
Associ ation (ASFA) from "firefighter adm nistrative officer” to
"a menber of" the association.

M5. SHINE stated that the mssion of AFSC is to establish
prof essi onal standards for fire service personnel and curriculum
requirenents for the certification of training prograns. She
said AKPFFA, an affiliate of the International Association of
Fire Fighters, represents roughly 500 career fire fighters
t hroughout the state. She relayed that the mssion of AFCA is
to serve the people of the state of Alaska by influencing fire
and energency services progranms in legislation, advancing fire
and energency services professionals, and providing for the
safety and well-being of fire fighters and their comunities.
She said the mssion of ASFA is to serve its nenbers through
professionalism and |eadership, thereby enhancing the fire
rescue services of Al aska.

M5. SHINE said under HB 304, the Governor would appoint one
nmenber of AKPFFA, one nenber of ASFA, and one nenber of AFCA to
the council froma list of at |east three nom nees submtted by
each association. She said the intent of the bill is to ensure
that AKPFFA, ASFA, and AFCA are represented on the Alaska Fire

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 21, 2012



Standards Council and to guarantee their designees can "speak
with the full confidence of their respective associations."”

8:10: 54 AM
M5. SHINE, in response to a question from Chair Lynn, offered

her understanding that the need for HB 304 was voiced by AFCA
and AKPFFA, as well as through letters of support from AFSC.

8:12:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked, "So, instead of having an
adm nistrator, we're having a professional fire fighter - an
experienced fire fighter - on the council instead? |Is that

why that was sw tched?"

MS. SHI NE answered yes.

8:12:36 AM

M5. SHINE, in response to Representative P. WIson, said after
asking all three associations and the council, she could not
find any opposition to the proposed bill. In response to

Representati ve Seaton, she offered her understanding that HB 304
includes all fire fighter associations of Al aska; however, she
deferred to upcom ng wi tnesses for verification.

8:14: 04 AM

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief, North Star Volunteer Fire Departnent
(NSVFD); Past President, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA),
testifying in support of HB 304, confirmed Ms. Shine's answer to
Representative Seaton that [HB 304] would represent the three
statew de organi zations that represent fire fighters throughout
Al aska. He said AFCA, along with AKPFFA, has worked with the
council to give those two organizations representation on the

council; ASFA already had a seat on the council. He said the
deci sions of the council have a direct influence on fire service
provisions and fire fighter training. He enphasized the

i nportance of having direct representation on the council.
8:15:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 18.70.360, which read as
foll ows:

Sec. 18.70.360. Alaska fire services personnel fund.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 21, 2012



The Al aska fire services personnel fund is created in
the general fund. The fund consists of appropriations
made by the legislature to the fund. The council may
use the noney in the fund to carry out its powers and
duti es.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that AS 18.70.350 does not
reference the Alaska fire services personnel fund. He said he
thinks the last sentence in AS 18.70.360 would normally appear
in AS 18.70 350. He said he would like to know nore about the
fund.

8:17:10 AM

M5. SHINE said she would have to get back to Representative
Gruenberg with an answer.

8:17:38 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked what Representative G uenberg's question has to
do with the nunber people on the council.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answer ed nothing, but indicated that it
is rel ated.

8:18: 06 AM

MR. TUCKER deferred to Gordon Descutner to answer Representative
Gruenberg's question.

8:18: 49 AM

TOM WESCOIT, President, testified in support of HB 304. He
stated that AKPFFA represents fire fighters from Kotzebue to
Ket chi kan. He said both the fire chief and AKPFFA have worked
with the council to be represented on the council and to get the

support of the council for the proposed |egislation. He said,
"Speaking for both, it's basically our goal to bring our
experience, our expertise, and our resources to the board in an
effort to help the board fulfill its mssion."

8:20:13 AM

MR. WESCOIT, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said there
are criteria for a fire fighter froma town with a popul ati on of
less than 2,500, as well as one from a town that has a
popul ation greater than that. In response to a followup

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 21, 2012



guestion, he said there was no nmjor event that brought about
the realization that the proposed changes were needed; there
were a couple neetings, where the idea was generated that the
peopl e who nake up AKPFFA and AFCA have sonething to offer to
the council. He confirned that there are seven conmunities
represented by AKPFFA. In response to Representative P
Wl son's query as to whether AKPFFA would "try to get nore,"” he
said, "Well, certainly."

8:22:51 AM

VB. SHI NE, in response to Representative Petersen, sai d
currently there are 11 nenbers serving on the council and, under
HB 304, there would be 12.

8:24: 36 AM

GORDON DESCUTNER, Executive Director, Alaska Fire Standards
Council (AFSC), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), in response
to Representative Guenberg's previous question, said the
original intent of the council was to collect a fee from hone
i nsurance premuns that would be put into a dedicated fund to

support the council; however, that never materialized. He said
that | anguage is still in statute, but technically there is no
money in a fire services personnel fund. He said the council

does have the authority to collect receipts, which are tied nost
directly to testing and certification, but are not tied to

council travel, which has, to date, been covered wth the
council's general funds. In response to Representative
Gruenberg, he said he does not know why the provision in statute
for the fund has never been inplenented. He said there was a

| ot of work done about 10 years ago regarding this issue, but no
agreenent was reached with the insurance agencies and "the other
personnel that were involved wth the early formation of the
council." He stated his belief that because of the difficulty
reaching an agreenent, [the council] chose an alternative
solution, part of which was to at |east have the administrative
services and travel costs for council menbers covered under the
general fund.

CHAI R LYNN requested that the bill sponsor check into this issue
and report his findings to the next commttee of referral - the
House Finance Comrittee.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he would |like a copy of those
findi ngs.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 21, 2012



8:27:45 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8.28:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 304 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 304 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

8:28:24 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:28 a.m to 8:30 a.m

HB 254- ALASKA NATI VE LANGUAGE COUNCI L

8:30:16 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 254, "An Act establishing the Al aska Native Language
Preservation and Advisory Council and relating to the
preservation, restoration, and revitalization of Al aska Native
| anguages. "

8:30: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 254, Version 27-LS1145\M M schel
2/ 20/ 12, as a work draft.

8:30: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
He offered his understanding that the only changes nade under
Version Mwould be to subsection (c), on page 2, lines 13-22.

8:31:14 AM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Staff, Representative Alan Dick, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, answered questions on behalf of Representative

Dick, joint prinme sponsor of HB 254. She confirmed that
Representative G uenberg was correct about where the changes
woul d be made. In response to Chair Lynn, she explained that in
the original bill version, subsection (c) proposed that the five

voting nenbers appointed to [the Alaska Native Language

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 21, 2012



Preservation and Advisory Council] by the governor would be

"professional |anguage experts"; however, after consultation
with Rosita Wrl, Ph.D., President of the Sealaska Heritage
Institute, the decision was nmade that "professional |anguage

experts" was too broad, because that term could include
i ngui sts who have no experience in Al aska Native |anguage. The
| anguage that was decided upon was: "three of whom are
prof essional Al aska Native |anguage revitalization experts and
two of whom are fluent in an Al aska Native |anguage and engaged
in revitalization efforts.” Ms. Kreitzer said Dr. Wrl is an
exanple of the fornmer and Representative Dick's wife is an
exanple of the latter.

8:32: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that there could be soneone
who is well qualified, who is fluent in an Al aska Native
| anguage but has not been previously engaged in revitalization
efforts, and who would be useful on the council. He said he
wonders whether a person nust have been previously engaged in
revitalization efforts or whether it could be soneone who is an
expert in the language and interested in revitalization efforts.
He opined that there are so few people who neet the proposed
criteria, and the governor should have as nuch |eeway as
possi ble, particularly with some of the nore renote |anguages
and di al ects.

8:34: 42 AM

M5. KREI TZER responded that those who are interested in the
proposed legislation wll put forward nanes of people they
believe to be qualified. She said she does not think the

| anguage, as witten [in Version M, would restrict the ability
of the governor to select sonmeone who is fluent in an Al aska
Native |l anguage and is interested and has attenpted to engage in
revitalization efforts.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "So, it <could be ... either
previously or currently engaged?"

M5. KREI TZER of fered her understanding that that is correct.
8: 35: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to the notion to
adopt the proposed conmittee substitute (CS) for HB 254, Version

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 21, 2012



27-LS1145\M M schel, 2/20/12, as a work draft. [There being no
further objection, Version Mwas before the commttee.]

8:36:14 AM

M5. KREITZER, in response to a question from Representative P.
Wl son, offered her wunderstanding that the fiscal note for HB
254 is approxi mately $240, 000.

8:36:51 AM

M5. KREITZER, in response to Representative Johansen, said the
normal , open board application process would be used, and the
only restriction on the governor's authority is that the five
voting menbers represent diverse regions of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if the joint prinme sponsor would
object to an amendnent stating that the Seal aska Corporation
woul d submit names for the Southeast Al aska council seat, from
whi ch the governor woul d then choose.

M5. KREI TZER ventured that Representative Dick would respond
that he does not want to restrict the opportunity for sonmeone
not affiliated with Seal aska to apply for a seat on the council.

8:40: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there was an unoffered
anendnent in the commttee packet, the |anguage of which was
subsunmed into Version M with one exception: the words "who are
engaged in revitalization efforts" are in the anendnent, whereas
the words "and engaged in revitalization efforts”™ are in Version

M He noted that that underscores M. Kreitzer's prior
acknow edgenent that the person could be either previously or
currently engaged. He observed that |anguage on page 3, line 1

gives the governor a date by which he/she nust make the
appoi ntnments, and he asked Ms. Kreitzer if it is the intent of
the joint priner sponsor that the |egislative appointnents also
woul d be nade by that date.

8:42: 08 AM
M5. KREI TZER answered yes. She said there was a point in tine
when governors were not neking tinely appointnents; however, in

general, if the House and Senate pass |egislation, those bodies
wi |l make the appointnments required by the piece of |egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 21, 2012



8:43:10 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

8:43: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anendnent 1, as foll ows:

Page 2, line 19:

Fol | owi ng "nenbers. "

Delete "In appointing the nonvoting nenbers of
the council, the president of the senate and the
speaker of the house of representatives shall appoint
a menber of the bush caucus, if a bush caucus exists

In this subsection, "bush caucus" nmeans a group of
| egislators that represents rural areas of the
states."

8:44: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON objected for the purpose of discussion

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated that deleting that |anguage woul d
allow the Senate President and the Speaker of the House to

determne who would be best to serve on the council, wthout
necessarily having to find soneone who is a nenber of the bush
caucus. He said he, Representati ve P. W son, and

Representative Kerttula are nenbers of the bush caucus; however
Representative Kerttula, for exanple, does not necessarily
represent a rural area of the state. He opined that [requiring
the appointnment of a nenber of the bush caucus] would disqualify
people who were born and raised [in rural Alaska] and speak a
Native Al aska |anguage, but have noved to an urban area of the
state where they are not part of the bush caucus. He questioned
t hat soneone who grew up in an urban area and subsequently noved
to a rural area would be nore qualified.

8:46: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his support of Anendnent 1. He
echoed Representative Johansen's point that someone living in an
urban area may have cone from rural Al aska and speak a Native
Al aska | anguage fluently.

8:47: 39 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said she would like to hear what the
joint prinme sponsor thinks of Anendnent 1.

8:48: 15 AM

M5. KREI TZER said [the joint prine sponsor] opposes Amendnent 1.
She said she understands Representative Johansen's concern;
however, with the |anguage as is, there would be many nenbers of
t he bush caucus that woul d be qualifi ed.

8:48: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated opposition to Amendnent 1. He said
he cannot 1i1magine a scenario in which there would be no
gualifying nanes for the Senate President and Speaker of the
House to put forward.

8:49: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON mai nt ai ned her objection

8:49: 59 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg and
Johansen voted in favor of Amendnent 1. Representatives Seaton

Keller, P. WIson, and Lynn voted against it. Therefore, the

notion to adopt Amendnent 1 failed by a vote of 2-4.
8: 50: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 254, Version 27-
LS1145\M M schel, 2/20/12 out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 254( STA) noved out of the House State Affairs
St andi ng Comm ttee.

8:50: 57 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from8:51 a.m to 8:53 a.m

HIR 34- COAST GUARD | CEBREAKERS & ARCTI C BASE

8:53: 05 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE

JONT RESCLUTION NO 34, Uging the United States Congress to
fund all the facilities and vessels necessary for the United

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 21, 2012



States Coast CGuard to fulfill its Arctic mssions, including
i cebreakers and an Arctic Coast Cuard base.

[ Before the commttee was CSHIR 34(M.V). ]
8:53:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt Anendnent 1, which read as
fol |l ows:

Page 4, lines 26 - 28:

Del ete "icebreakers, including charging for
i cebreaker escorts, the option to |lease rather than
own the icebreakers needed in the Arctic, and selling
our aging icebreakers to the private sector for
ref ur bi shnment”

Insert "the refurbishnment of our current polar
cl ass icebreakers, the acquisition of new icebreakers,
and the long-term maintenance funding of the United
States Coast (@uard icebreaker fleet and Arctic
facilities”

8:53:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  P. WLSON objected [for the purpose of
di scussi on] .

8:53: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HIR 34 as sponsor. He stated his support of Amendnent 1, which
he said is a result of testinony heard in the previous conmttee
of referral. He explained that "when you |ease, you don't have
full control over icebreakers at all tinmes," which he said could
be inportant in enmergency situations. He said charging for
i cebreaker escorts is illegal in international waters, where
freedom of navigation is guaranteed under international law. He
said "this" makes sense in regard to the northern sea route -
the Russian side; it does not nake so nuch sense in regard to
the Bering Strait. He relayed that although selling icebreakers
may make sense on rare occasion, refurbishing them is probably
t he best pl an.

8:56:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON renoved her objection. [There being no
further objection, Amendnent 1 was adopted. ]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 21, 2012



8:57: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated that [CSHIR 34(M.V), as anended, ]
asks U S. Congress to fund all facilities and vessels necessary

for the US. Coast Guard to fulfill its mssion, including a
forward Arctic base, icebreakers, and ice capable vessels. He
said the genesis of the proposed resolution cane from a study
done by the Northern Waters Task Force, in particular from
conversations and testinony heard during that process regarding
nat i onal and state securities, for which the USCG is
responsi bl e. He explained that during the testinony, the

opinion was voiced that the State of Al aska should urge the
federal governnent to strengthen and broaden USCG capabilities
wi th nore icebreakers.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said currently the only operational ice
breaker is the Healy, and its l|life expectancy is to 2029; the
Polar Star is due back in 2013, after its refurbishnment, but is

only expected to last until 2023. 1In response to Chair Lynn, he
said all three icebreakers are in the Pacific Northwest
currently. He relayed that the Polar Sea is slated to be
decomi ssi oned. He indicated that President Barack Cbana has
put $8 mllion toward studies and a new icebreaker. He said a
new icebreaker costs up to $1 billion and can take 7-10 years
from the time it is funded to the tinme it is |aunched. He

further indicated that the rationale of the proposed |egislation
is contained within its | anguage.

8:59:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said the ideas inserted in the proposed
joint resolution were from Lt. Governor Mead Treadwell, whose
history with the Arctic is well chronicled. He noted that the
last commttee of referral anended HIJR 34 so that all foreign
mnisters of "the appropriate Arctic jurisdictions" would
receive a copy.

9: 00: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his support of the proposed
joint resolution. He asked if there is a need to purchase
additional aircraft.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON replied t hat under t he pr oposed

| egislation, the legislature is asking the U S. Coast Guard to
work with its federal funders for an icebreaker with helicopters

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 21, 2012



that would be stationed on the icebreaker. He suggested a
shorter term goal would be the establishnent of a forward base
somewhere between None and Barrow that would house a C 1-30. He
offered his understanding that in the recent past, a C 1-30 had
to overnight in Barrow in freezing weather and, because there
was no housing for it, parts froze, and the C 1-30 was grounded
to wait for new parts to be brought in.

9:02: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN pointed to the reference to "the United
States Arctic Region Policy" on page 1, line 13, and asked for
i nformati on about that policy.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON rel ayed that on January 9, 2009, there was
a Presidential directive to the US. Departnment of Honeland
Security regarding the security of the Arctic region. He said
he woul d nake copi es available to the conmttee.

9:04: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he thinks it is logical that "we
have a presence and nove towards this," but explained that he is
trying to clarify |anguage within the proposed joint resolution

He directed attention to |anguage on page 2, line 1, which

states that "ice cover in the Arctic is at historic lows", and
he questioned the scientific accuracy of that statenent.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded that he thinks that  brief
statenent could be "further and better explained."

9: 05: 40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to |anguage on page
4, lines 8-10, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :
WHEREAS having a sufficient nunber of ice-capable
vessel s, i ncl udi ng shal | ow-draft vessel s W th
i cebreaking capability, is vital for the United States
Coast Quard to fulfill its expanding mission in the

Arctic; and

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked the sponsor if he is famliar with
the U S. Coast CGuard's plans for the future.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON deferred to Admral Garrett.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to the term "Bering
Strait chokepoint”, on page 4, line 12, and asked for the
sponsor's definition of "chokepoint".

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that "chokepoint”™ is a common
phrase heard during visits to the Nonme area, Wales, and Little
D onede, but he deferred to Admral Garret for further
expl anat i on.

9:07:57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the bill sponsor if he would
consi der addi ng another "whereas" and another "be it resolved"
to HIR 34, to ask U S. Congress to ratify the Law of the Sea
Treaty "for reasons expressed in here."

9:09: 03 AM

REPRESENTATIVE HERRON said the legislature has passed a
resolution related to the Law of the Sea Treaty, which is in
court.

9:10:49 AM

ADM RAL JEFFREY GARRETT (Retired) related that he spent nuch of
his career with the U S. Coast Guard serving in the icebreaker
fleet both in the Arctic and the Antarctic. He continued as
foll ows:

| think, as the Arctic has transforned in the past few
years, these assets have becone increasingly critical
to the Coast Guard's ability to perform all its
m ssion responsibility in the Arctic, and | think
right now we're starting to see the consequences of
the nation's long-term disinvestnment in our icebreaker
fleet.

ADM RAL GARRETT said the U S. Coast Guard has been unable to
depl oy an icebreaker for Arctic nulti-mssion purposes for over
two years, and planned mssions for the Polar Sea have had to be
cancel | ed. He said, "The nation's had no icebreaker avail able
to provide the critical annual resupply of US. bases in
Antarctica this year, forcing reliance on the expensive, short-

term charter of a Russian vessel." Furthernore, he relayed, the
i cebreaker Healy was used to supply Nonme with its fuel supply
| ast nonth, and, while the mssion to Nome was successful, it

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 21, 2012



was acconplished only at the cost of extending Healy's |engthy
Arctic deploynent and disrupting planned maintenance and future
oper ati ons.

ADM RAL GARRETT said he thinks Alaskans clearly understand what
is happening in the Arctic today. He said he is glad to see the
need for adequate Arctic resources sumarized in HIR 34, as well
as the resolution's strong call for the federal governnment to
provide the U S. Coast Guard with the neans to "neet our
national needs in the Arctic" - particularly in regard to
i cebr eakers. He said the fact that the President's 2013 budget
i ncludes funding to begin icebreaker requisition is encouraging;
however, he opined that "this inportant action nust nove forward
qui ckly, and we have to ensure that the Polar Star and Pol ar Sea
remain fully operational in the interim"™ He said, "There's
really no substitute for having the right tool to neet the
chal l enges of a transformng Arctic."

ADM RAL GARRETT echoed Representative Herron's nmention of a
Presidential directive to the US. Departnent of Honeland
Security regarding the security of the Arctic region, and said

it is a "high-level docunent." He noted that the U S. Coast
Guard has a high-level docunent called, "A Strategic Arctic
Appr oach. " He said, "Really what's mssing, | think, is the

actual tool to do these things."
9:14: 50 AM
ADM RAL GARRETT, in response to a previous question from

Represent ati ve Johansen asking for a definition of "chokepoint",
explained that any entrance to or from the Wstern Arctic

requires travel through the Bering Strait, which forces
international traffic "through U S waters in None." He said
the U S. Coast Guard is concerned about having the ability to
monitor that traffic. He said icebreakers are the key to

situations related to defense, security, search and rescue, and
pol | uti on.

9:15: 49 AM

ADM RAL GARRETT, regarding previous nention of the Law of the
Sea Treaty, stated:

This has been on the table for many years: mul tiple
chiefs of naval operations, nultiple comandants of
the Coast Guard, joint chiefs of staff have al

(indisc.) incentive to pass the Law of the Sea

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 21, 2012



[ Treaty], which will enable the United States to nake

Continental Shelf clains and will preserve U S. rights
and give us (indisc. -- coughing) standing, basically
to participate in future Law of the Sea itens. And

this is particularly germane to the Arctic, where, for
the past 6 years, the icebreaker Healy has been doing
survey work to justify and defend this against foreign
clainms of the outer Continental Shelf.

9:16:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recol |l ected that in history, there were
seven or eight vital straits named, and he questioned if the
Bering Strait was one.

ADM RAL GARRETT said he does not believe "in those days" that
the Bering Strait "figured much into the worldw de strategic
construct,” but he opined that it should today.

9:18: 12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a book entitled, The

| nfl uence of Sea Power on History, and indicated that updating
related to straits would be necessary.

ADM RAL GARRETT concurr ed. He mentioned the effect of clinmate
change on naval operations. He said he thinks the Bering Strait
has to be considered a critical waterway.

9:19: 06 AM

CHAIR LYNN said this issue is interesting, but questioned
whether it is germane to the proposed joint resol ution.

9:19: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked that the conmmttee not include
| anguage regarding the Law of Sea Treaty in HIR 34.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said The Study of Sea Power shows that
battles and wars are won by who controls the straits. He
referenced the word "chokepoint”, on page 4, line 12, and
enphasized the inportance of controlling the entire Bering
Strait, which he said will "have a lot of inportance as we have
nore gl obal warm ng."

9:21:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON nentioned the National Acadeny  of
Sci ences' 50-year U.S. Navy research project, and indicated that
t he proposed | egislation could be anended on the House fl oor.

9:22: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his office's service in that
effort. He reenphasized, "It's nore than a chokepoint; it's a
strategic strait."

CHAIR LYNN suggested that the word "strategic" nay be better
than the word "chokepoint™.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN renmarked that "perhaps another Arctic
resolution ... mght be your answer."

9:22:49 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

9:22:57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anendnent 2, as foll ows:

Page 1, lines 6-7:
Delete "on equal footing with the previously
admtted states"

9:23: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
He asked why Representative Johansen thinks Al aska was not
adm tted on equal footing.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opined that since the original thirteen
col oni es, no state has been adnmtted on equal footing,
especially Al aska, where nost of the land is owned by the
federal governnment and the state is controlled by the federa
government |like no other state in the Union.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the effect of Anmendnent 1 woul d be
to inply that Alaska was admitted on |ess than equal footing

He said he thinks it is inportant to establish that Al aska has
the rights of all other states, even if it 1is not always
accorded those rights.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 21, 2012



CHAI R LYNN questioned whether Anendnent 1 would have an effect
on the heart of the proposed joint resolution, which is that
Al aska needs nore icebreakers.

9:25: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in response to Chair Lynn, asked why
the language is in HIR 34 if it does not nmake a difference. In
response to Representative Guenberg, he said the [|anguage
directly before that which would be deleted under Anmendnent 1
shows that "Alaska was admtted to statehood in 1959". He
reiterated that stating Alaska is on equal footing is admtting
that Alaska is treated equally, which he does not believe is
true.

9:26: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG mai nt ai ned hi s obj ecti on.
9:26:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON ventured there is a |legal question wherein
there may be debate as to whether Alaska was the only state
admtted having subsurface rights to gas, oil, and other
m nerals, and he remarked that alnost all of Al aska's budget is
based upon the particularity of receiving oil and all the
subsurface rights. He said the |egislature has had di scussions
regarding the amount of |and "given to education” and "whether
some of them were resolved by noney and trust instead of actua
land.” He said he thinks the intent of the first four or five
"WHEREAS" statenments in HIR 34 is to say that Alaska was
purchased and admitted on equal footing, and in recognition of
that, Al aska deserves the sane protection and preferences as any

ot her state. He stated, "I think that the sequence in hear is
to make a continuity between the second whereas and the fifth
whereas following in conjunction.” In response to the chair, he

clarified that he was speaking in objection to Arendnent 2.
9:28: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated his support for Anendnent 2.
9:28: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that the proposed Anmendnent 2 be
read again for clarification.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 21, 2012



9:28: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN cl arified Arendnent 2. He said he would
like the bill sponsor's response to Amendnent 2.

9:29:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he thinks Anmendnment 2 is in the
possession of the commttee, and he said, "I have no opinion
ei ther way."

9:29:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked for confirmation that Anmendment 2
woul d not delete the word "and" [on page 1, line 7].

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN answered that is correct.
9:30: 03 AM
A roll call vote was taken. Representatives P. WIlson, Keller
Pet ersen, Johansen, and Lynn voted in favor of Anendnent 2.
Represent ati ves Seaton and Guenberg voted against it.
Therefore, Amendnment 2 was adopted by a vote of 5-2.
9: 30: 46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anendnent 3, as foll ows:
Page 1, line 8:

Del ete "deserves"

| nsert "expects"

Del ete "and assi st ance"
9:31:46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON obj ect ed. She said she would like to
split [Amendnment 3] in two. She explained that she |ikes

"expects" but does not |ike "and assistance".

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he would like to speak to Anendnent

3 before any notions are nade to change it. Regardi ng the
proposed change from "deserves"” to "expects", he said, "I don't
want to sit around and think that | deserve anything."

Li kewi se, he said he does not want anyone to think he is waiting
around for assistance.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 21, 2012



9:32: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN sai d he under st ands wher e
[ Representative Johansen] is comng from but does not believe
that the State of Alaska wants to be in the icebreaker buying
business and, thus, needs the assistance of +the federa
governnent to procure icebreakers.

CHAIR LYNN reiterated that obtaining icebreakers is the Kkey
el ement of HIR 34. He said he supports Anmendnent 3; however, he
indicated Al aska's involvenent with the federal governnent in
terms of acquiring icebreakers.

9:34:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that a notion
had been nmade to divide the question, and he said he supports
doi ng so.

9:34:16 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the comittee would divide the
guestion to Amendnment 3, such that there would be an Anmendnent
3a and 3b.

9:34: 32 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON noved to adopt Amendnent 3a, as
fol |l ows:

Page 1, line 8:
Del ete "deserves"
| nsert "expects"

9:34:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed. He explained that it is
possi bl e to expect sonething but not deserve it. He opined that
it is nore inportant that Al aska deserve [full recognition], and
he said he thinks the state deserves it. Furthernore, he said
he thinks the state deserves the assistance in this particular
case. He warned, "The effect of this anendnment, whether it's
divided or not, wll weaken the 'WHEREAS clause." He said,
"This is not just semantics; this is the heart of the policy
behind the resolution.” He ~concurred wth Representative
Petersen regarding Alaska not being in the business of buying

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 21, 2012



i cebr eakers. He said this is a national issue of strategic

i mport ance. He enphasized that w thout the assistance of the
federal governnent, Alaska wll not have the icebreakers it
needs. He opined that the proposed |anguage would weaken HIR
34.

9:36:13 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said, "I'll wthdraw ny anmendnent to
di vide. "

CHAIR LYNN stated, "So, we're back to the original anendnent.”
He asked Representative Johansen to restate [ Anendnent 3].

9: 36: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN renewed his nmotion to adopt Anendnent 3
[l anguage previously provided].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG restated his opposition to Anendnent 3.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN expl ai ned that he thinks using the term
"deserves" nmkes Al aska sound like a spoiled little child, while
he thinks using the word "expects"” neans that high expectations
will be net. Regarding the previous remark that the anmendnent
is not germane to the issue, he said, the |anguage addressed by
Amendnent 3 is a part of the proposed joint resolution. He said
the ~current |anguage states that Alaska deserves federa

assistance like any other state. He said, "I'm pretty sure
they're not building icebreakers in Kansas; they get other ways
of assi stance."

9:38:18 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that "expects”

presunes "the deserved part" and is, therefore, a nuch stronger
wor d.

9:38: 28 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Johansen, Keller,
and Lynn voted in favor of the notion to adopt Amendnent 3.
Represent ati ves Seaton, G uenberg, Petersen, and P. WIson voted
against it. Therefore, Amendnent 3 failed by a vote of 3-4.

9:39:15 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anendnent 4, as foll ows:

Page 2, lines 4-5, followng "activity":
Delete "related to shipping, oi | and gas
devel opnment, commercial fishing, and tourisnt

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said the intent of Amendnent 4 is to
broaden the | anguage. He explained that there could be other
types of human activity in the Arctic region, including sail
boats and vessels related to science.

9:40: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected. He said the phrase, "rel ated
to shipping, oil and gas devel opnment, conmmercial fishing, and

tourisnm is neant to be illustrative, not exclusive. He said
the text focuses the attention of the reader on "things that are
involved and ... are essential to the icebreaker issue." He

said he does not think anyone would argue that the state needs
to purchase an icebreaker to enable a sail boat to travel in the
Arctic. He reiterated that the proposed change woul d weaken the
"WHEREAS" cl ause.

9:41: 28 AM

CHAIR LYNN noved to anend Anendnent 4, to add "including”
[instead of "related to"].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d support that.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN obj ect ed. He said if an anendnent is
made to Anmendnent 4, he would like the |anguage to say
"including but not limted to".

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG called a point of order, and related

that [AS 01.10.040(b)] specifies that the meaning of "including”
inlegislation is "including but not limted to".

REPRESENTATIVE JOHANSEN nmamintained his objection to the
anmendnent to Amendnent 4.

9:42:49 AM
CHAIR LYNN, in response to Representative Seaton, clarified that

under the anendnent to Amendnent 4, [page 2, lines 3-5 would
read as follows]:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 21, 2012



WHEREAS the entire Arctic region, including the

Arctic region of the United States, is experiencing
i ncreased human activity, including activity related
to shipping, oil and gas developnent, conmerci al

fishing, and tourism and

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG returned to AS 01.10.040(b), which read
as foll ows:

(b) When the words "includes” or "including" are
used in a law, they shall be construed as though
foll owed by the phrase "but not linmted to."

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG acknow edged that the |anguage being
considered is part of a joint resolution, but said he thinks the
term "including" wuld be read in accordance wth AS
01. 10. 040(b) .

9:44: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN renoved his objection to the proposed
amendnent to Amendnent 4.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON objected to the anendnent to Amendnent
4 to point out that AS 01.10.040(b) is Alaska law, and HIR 34
would be read by the federal governnent. She supported
Representative Johansen's suggestion to use the phrase
"including but not limted to".

CHAIR LYNN said, "That's fine with ne; |1'll amend the anendnent
to t he amendnent , to i ncl ude Representati ve Wl son's
nmodi fi cati on. "

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN questioned whether it is in order for
the commttee to anend an amendnent to the amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d, "No, but ... we got the gist."
CHAI R LYNN enphasi zed the conceptual nature of the anmendnent.
9:46: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he would like to hear feedback from
t he sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded, "The |list could have been
exhaustive, but | support the amendnent.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON renoved her objection. [The amendnent,
as anended, to Anendment 4 was treated as adopted. ]

9:46: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to Anmendnent 4,
as anended.

9:47: 14 AM
CHAI R LYNN confirmed that Anendnent 4, as anended, was adopt ed.
9:47:18 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anendnent 5, as foll ows:

Page 2, line 7, following "United States":

Delete "to enable the responsible devel opment of
resources, foster maritime comrerce, safeguard the
wel | -being of Arctic residents and ecosystens,
facilitate energency and disaster preparedness and
response, and protect United States sovereignty”

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG o0bj ect ed. He said the existing
| anguage focuses attention on specific problens. Under
Amendnent 5, the | anguage beconmes general and does not give the
reason for the need for investnent.

9:49: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON suggested that the commttee not support
Amendnent 5, because the findings of the Northern Waters Task
Force specifically outline governance, oil and gas exploration
and devel opnent, mari ne transportation, pl anni ng and
infrastructure investnent, and fisheries.

9:49: 41 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Johansen and Keller
voted in favor of Anendnent 5. Representati ves Petersen, P.
W | son, Seat on, G uenber g, and Lynn voted against it.

Therefore, Amendnent 5 failed by a vote of 2-5.
9:50: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anmendnent 6, as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 21, 2012



Page 2, line 16:
Delete "oil and gas and other potentially
hazar dous™

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in response to the chair, clarified
t hat under Amendment 6, the "WHEREAS' clause [on page 2, lines
15-17], would read as foll ows:

WHEREAS, as Northern sea routes open and foreign
shi ppers set their sights on Asian mar ket s,
international shipping of <cargo through the Bering
Strait is rapidly increasing; and

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN argued that any ship going through the
Bering Strait has oil, gas, or other potentially hazardous cargo
on board, and he said he does not think it is appropriate to be
"pointing out a particular section of shippers.”

9:51: 53 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
9:52: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he wunderstands the intent of the
amendnent. However, he said this "WHEREAS" would share with the
federal governnment the specific concern expressed by the U S
Coast Quard and others regarding the Northern Sea route - the
Russian side of the Arctic - and shippers that go through the
eastern side of the strategic strait or chokepoint. He said

"We're not calling out ourselves on any oil and gas or hazardous
cargo on ships that are going through on our side of the
strait.”

9:53: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks this "WHEREAS" clause
specifically addresses hazards that are different from those
contained in the other "WHEREAS' cl auses, such as the |anguage
on [page 2], line 21, which addresses "nmarine safety, ports,
wat erways, and coastal security". He said for those reasons he
opposes Anmendrent 6.

9:54:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN of fered his understanding that there are
two choke points: one between Big Dionede and Little D onede
and Al aska, and the other between the two islands and Russia
He asked if the U S. has any control over "what happens ... on
the ... Russian side of the chokepoint."” He further asked how
the countries involved nmake deci sions.

9: 55: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON indicated that [the [|anguage of the
"WHEREAS" clause on page 2, lines 15-17] is "calling on the
potential"™ for an unfortunate incident wherein oil and gas and
any other hazardous cargo cones across international boundaries
into U S territory, at which point the U S. would "have to dea
with it whether we like it or not."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if there is a definite boundary
line drawn in that area, or if there is still "a triangle that
we're arguing over in that area.”

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that he is confident that the
line within the chokepoint is defined. He said there is a
triangle farther south in the Bering Sea. In response to a
foll owup question, he said the Northern Sea route in the Polar
Region is on the Russian side and follows along the Russian
Border over to Europe. In response to the chair, he said he
does not know the specific routes on the Russian side, but
clarified that the Northern Sea route is considered the Russian
route.

9:57: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON, in response to Representative Johansen,
opi ned that the "WHEREAS' cl ause recognizes that "on that side
of the strategic strait there is international [of] shipping oil
and gas and other cargos, and it's just increasing.” He
expressed his hope that "that will assist the federal governnent
in its wisdom to realize that naybe icebreakers are necessary
for us on this side of the strait."

9:58: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated support for Anendnent 6. He said
he thinks the "WHEREAS" cl ause coul d be better witten.

9:59: 29 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 21, 2012



A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Johansen and Keller
voted in favor of Anmendnment 6. Representati ves G uenberg,
Pet er sen, P. WIlson, Seaton, and Lynn voted against it.
Therefore, Amendnent 6 failed by a vote of 2-5.

10: 00: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noved to adopt Anmendnent 7, as foll ows:

Page 3, lines 19-21:
Del ete all | anguage

10: 00: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER and REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN sai d he has not hing agai nst None or what
the [Russian] fuel tanker did [escorted by the U S. Coast
Guard's icebreaker], although he offered his understanding that
necessity for such action was because soneone forgot to get the
community's fuel order in on tine. He explained that he does
not want to set the precedent that it is okay that "we're going
to run around with an icebreaker and plow a hole to whatever

community needs to get oil at the tine." He opined that the
state needs to solve the bigger problem - "the energy issue" -
first. For exanple, he said if a road is built to None, then an

i cebreaker woul d not have to provide fuel to that community. He
mentioned the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) Program and said,
“In a perfect world, PCE goes away."

10: 03: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER renoved hi s objection.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said it is inportant to include this
"WHEREAS" cl ause, because people's lives are affected when fuel
cannot be delivered.

10: 04: 31 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Keller and Johansen
voted in favor of Anmendnment 7. Representati ves G uenberg,
Petersen, P. WIson, Seaton, and Lynn voted against it.
Therefore, Amendnent 7 failed by a vote of 2-5.

10: 04: 54 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- February 21, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHIR 34(MV), as anended,
out of committee wth individual reconmendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN obj ected. He said he believes "this" is
a valid effort. However, he expressed concern that if passed,
every word in [CSHIR 34(MV), as anended,] would be sent to the
federal governnment as representing the position of the Al aska
State Legislature. He asked committee nenbers to think about
that, and said chances are they would have another chance to
vote on the previously considered anendnents on the House fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN renoved his objection to the notion to
report CSHIR 34(MV), as anended, out of committee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no further objection, CSHIR 34(STA) was reported out
of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

10: 07: 20 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:07
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- February 21, 2012



